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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

JACKSONVILLE DIVISION

MARCUS CRESPO; JEREMIAH RIVERA; FILEDISREAL ALVARENGA; and all ‘2.1TCLERK, U. S. DISTRICT COURT
others similarly situated,

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORID/fJACKSONVILLE, FLORIDAPlaintiffs,

vs. CASE NO.: 3; b„ov 16go-J-.9s-
STEVE AND TARA'S ITALIAN RESTAURANT, INC.
doing business as NAPOLI'S PASTARIA; STEVE BARRY,
individually; and TARA BARRY, individually,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

COMES NOW the Plaintiffs, MARCUS CRESPO; JEREMIAH RIVERA;

ISREAL ALVARENGA, on behalf of themselves and other employees and former

employees similarly situated, by and through undersigned counsel, file this action against

STEVE AND TARA'S ITALIAN RESTAURANT, INC., doing business as Napoli's

Pastaria; STEVE BARRY, individually; and TARA BARRY, individually, and in

support thereof, states the following:

JURISDICTION

1) Jurisdiction in this Court is proper as the claims are brought pursuant to

the Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended (29 USC 201, et seq., hereinafter referred as

"FLSA") to recover damages for retaliation and unpaid back wages, an additional amount

as liquidated damages, and reasonable attorney's fees and costs.
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2) The jurisdiction of the Court over this controversy is based upon 29 USC

216 (b) and 26 U.S.C. 7434(a).

3) Further jurisdiction over the state law claims are covered under this

Court's supplemental jurisdiction.

PARTIES

4) At all times material hereto, Plaintiffs were and continue to reside within

the Middle District ofFlorida.

5) At all times material hereto, the corporate Defendant, Steve and Tara's

Italian Restaurant, Inc., doing business as Napoli's Pastaria (hereinafter Corporate

Defendant), was and continues to be a corporation organized under the laws of Florida

and engaged in business within the Middle District of Florida.

6) At all times material hereto, the individual Defendants Steve Barry and

Tara Barry were residents of the Middle District of Florida, who owned and operated the

Corporate Defendant and who regularly exercised the authority to: a) hire and fire

employees; b) determine work schedules for employees of the Corporate Defendant; and

c) control the finances and operations of the Corporate Defendant. By virtue of having

regularly exercised that authority on behalf the Corporate Defendants, the individual

Defendants are "employers" as defined by 29 USC 201, el seq.

7) At all times material hereto, the Plaintiffs were "engaged in commerce"

within the meaning of sections 6 and 7, FLSA and subject to the individual coverage of

the FSLA.
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8) At all times material hereto, Plaintiffs were "engaged in the production of

goods" within the meaning of sections 6 and 7, FLSA and subject to the individual

coverage of the FSLA.

9) At all times material hereto, all Defendants were "employers" within the

meaning of the FLSA.

10) Defendants continue to be "employers" within the meaning of the FSLA.

11) At all times material hereto, Defendants were "an enterprise engaged in

commerce" within the meaning of the FLSA.

12) Based upon information and belief, the annual gross revenue of

Defendants was in excess of $500,000.00 during the relevant time periods.

13) The additional persons who may become Plaintiffs herein were restaurant

kitchen workers and other restaurant employees who worked in excess of forty (40) hours

during one or more weeks during the relevant time periods, but who did not receive pay

at one and one-half times their regular pay for the hours worked in excess of forty (40)

hours.

14) At all times material hereto, the work performed by the Plaintiffs was

directly essential to Defendants' restaurant business.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

15) Plaintiffs are all former employees of Defendants, whose duties involved

restaurant kitchen work ofcooking and cleaning.

16) From at least December 2012, and continuing through the present,

Defendants failed to compensate Plaintiffs at a rate of one and one-half times Plaintiffs'

regular pay rate for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a single work week.
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Plaintiffs should be compensated at a rate of one and one-half times Plaintiffs' regular

pay rate for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a single work week.

17) Defendants created two (2) sets of hourly employee time records in order

to avoid paying overtime pay to Plaintiffs and others similarly situated. While the first set

of records shows actual time worked by Plaintiffs (in the vast majority of instances, in

excess of 40 hours per week), the second set misrepresents that Plaintiffs only worked 40

hours per week.

18) Documentation concerning the number of hours actually worked by

Plaintiffs and the compensation actually paid to the Plaintiffs are in the possession,

custody and control of Defendants.

19) In and around 2015, Defendants engaged a computer engineer for the sole

purpose of "crashing" Defendants' business computer systems, so that Defendants' actual

sales information was destroyed, as well as information regarding pay roll and the

number of hours employees worked. Defendants' underwent this effort after undersigned

counsel informed Defendants that Defendants had failed to pay the required overtime to

Plaintiff Marcus Moises Crespo. With regard to the destruction of the payroll and other

business records, Defendant Steve Barry admitted that the motivation was to avoid IRS

tax liability and avoid overtime liability.

20) Plaintiffs have retained the undersigned to represent Plaintiffs in the

instant litigation and have agreed to pay the firm a reasonable fee for its services.

COUNT I VIOLATION OF FLSA OVERTIME COMPENSATION

21) Plaintiffs re-allege paragraphs 1 through 20, as if fully set forth herein.
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22) From at least December 2012, through the present, Plaintiffs have worked

in excess of forty (40) hours per week and were not compensated at a rate of one and one-

half times Plaintiffs' regular pay rate for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours.

23) Plaintiffs are and were entitled to be paid at the statutory rate of one and

one-half times Plaintiffs' regular pay rate for all hours worked in excess of forty (40)

hours in a week.

24) At all times material hereto, Defendants failed and continue to fail to

maintain proper time records as required by the FLSA.

25) Defendants have violated Title 29 USC 207 from a least 2012 through

the present, in that:

a. Plaintiffs worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week for the

period ofemployment with Defendants;

b. No payments and provisions for payment have been made by

Defendants to properly compensate Plaintiffs at a rate of one and one-half times

Plaintiffs' regular pay rate for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in a

single work week.

c. Defendants have failed to maintain proper time records as

mandated by the FLSA.

26) Defendants were willful and/or had reckless disregard for the overtime

provisions of the FLSA, by its utter failure to compensate Plaintiffs at the statutory rate of

one and one-half times Plaintiffs' regular pay rate for all hours worked in excess of forty

(40) hours in a week, when they knew or should have known such was due and owing.
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27) Defendants have failed to properly disclose or apprise Plaintiffs of their

rights under the FLSA.

28) Due to the intentional, willful, and unlawful acts of Defendants, Plaintiffs

suffered and continues to suffer damages and lost compensation for time worked over

forty (40) hours per week, plus liquidated damages.

29) Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees and costs

pursuant to 29 USC 216 (b).

30) At all times material hereto, Defendants failed to comply with Title 29 and

Labor Department Regulations, 29 CFR sections 516.2 and 516.4, with respect to those

similarly situated to the named Plaintiffs by virtue of the management policy, plan, or

decision that intentionally provided for the compensation of such employees as if they

were exempt from coverage under 29 USC section 201 and 219, disregarding that fact

that they are not exempt.

31) Based upon information and belief, the employees and former employees

of Defendants are similarly situated to the named Plaintiffs in that they were paid straight

time and expected to work in excess of forty (40) hours per week without being paid at

the rate of one and one-half times Plaintiffs' regular pay rate for all hours worked in

excess of forty (40) hours in a week.

WHEREFORE Plaintiffs pray that judgment be entered in their favor, and in

favor of all those similarly situated, and against the Defendants:

a. Declaring, via sections 2201 and 2202 of the FLSA that the acts

and practices complained of herein are in violation of the

maximum hour provisions of the FLSA;
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b. Awarding Plaintiffs overtime compensation in the amount due for

time worked in excess of forty (40) hours per work week;

c. Awarding Plaintiffs liquidated damages, or treble damages in an

amount equal to or three times the amount of overtime due;

d. Awarding Plaintiffs reasonable attorney's fee and costs under

section 216 (b).

e. Awarding Plaintiffs pre-judgment interest and post-judgment

interest.

COUNT II FLSA RETALIATION

32) The Plaintiffs re-allege paragraphs 1 through 20, as if fully set forth

herein.

33) Plaintiffs objected to, or refused to participate in, any activity, policy, or

practice of the employer which is in violation of a law, rule, or regulation;

to wit: Plaintiffs' objections, complaints and protestations regarding

Defendants' violations of federal overtime pay law.

34) After Plaintiffs complained to individual Defendant Steve Barry about the

violation of federal overtime law, Defendants retaliated against Plaintiffs

by wrongful termination after years ofdedicated service.

35) As a direct and proximate of Defendants' conduct, Plaintiffs have

suffered.

WHEREFORE Plaintiffs pray that judgment be entered in their favor, and in

favor of all those similarly situated, and against the Defendants for compensatory
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damages, including but not limited to lost wages, pain and suffering, along with

reasonable attorney's fees and costs under the FLSA.

COUNT III VIOLATION OF FLORIDA'S WHISTLE BLOWER ACT

36) The Plaintiffs re-allege paragraphs 1 through 20, as if fully set forth

herein.

37) Plaintiffs objected to, or refused to participate in, any activity, policy, or

practice of the employer which is in violation of a law, rule, or regulation;

to wit: Plaintiffs' objections, complaints and protestations regarding

Defendants' violations of federal overtime pay law.

38) After Plaintiffs complained to individual Defendant Steve Barry about the

violation of federal overtime law, Defendants retaliated against Plaintiffs

by wrongful termination after years ofdedicated service.

39) As a direct and proximate of Defendants' conduct, Plaintiffs have

suffered.

WHEREFORE Plaintiffs pray that judgment be entered in their favor, and in

favor of all those similarly situated, and against the Defendants for compensatory

damages, including but not limited to lost wages, pain and suffering, along with

reasonable attorney's fees and costs under Section 448.104, Fla. Stat.

COUNT IV VIOLATION OF FLORIDA'S
DECEPTIVE TRADE PRACTICES ACT

33) The Plaintiffs re-allege the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through

20, as if fully set forth herein.
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34) This is an action pursuant to Chapter 501, Fla. Stat. Among other things,

Defendants manipulated time records and payroll data in order to attempt avoidance at

federally obligated overtime payments.

35) The willful conduct of the Defendants amounts to "unconscionable acts or

practices, and unfair or deceptive acts or practices in the conduct of any trade or

commerce" under the Act. Id.

36) As a direct and proximate result of the Defendants' conduct, the Plaintiffs

have been damaged.

37) Plaintiffs have satisfied all conditions prerequisite to bringing this suit, or

such have been waived by the Defendants.

WHEREFORE the Plaintiffs pray this the Court enter judgment in their favor and

against the Defendants and award damages pursuant to §501.2075 Fla. Stat., as well as

reasonable attorney's fees and costs, pursuant to §501.2105 Fla. Stat., and any other relief

deemed reasonable and necessary by the Court.

COUNT V UNJUST ENRICHMENT/ QUANTUM MERUIT

38) The Plaintiffs re-allege the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through

20, as if fully set forth herein.

39) The Defendants received the benefit of unpaid work by coercion and

deception.

40) The Defendants appreciated the benefit and accepted it.

41) Defendants' retention of the benefit under circumstances is inequitable.

42) As a direct and proximate cause of the Defendants' actions and omissions,

the Plaintiffs have been damaged.
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WHEREFORE the Plaintiffs pray that this the Court enter judgment in their favor

and against the Defendants and award damages, including compensatory and collateral

damages, and reasonable costs, and any other relief deemed reasonable and necessary by

the Court.

COUNT VI VIOLATION OF FLORIDA'S MINIMUM WAGE ACT

43) The Plaintiffs re-allege the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 20, as if

fully set forth herein.

44) Defendants failed to pay Plaintiffs and other similarly situated employees the

Florida Minimum Wage for all hours worked, in violation of the FMWA.

45) Defendants' violations were knowing, willful and in reckless disregard for the

rights of Plaintiffs and others similarly situated.

46)As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' actions, Plaintiffs have been

damaged.

WHEREFORE Plaintiffs pray that judgment be entered in their favor, and in favor of

all those similarly situated, and against the Defendants:

a. Declaring that the acts and practices complained of herein are in

violation of the maximum hour provisions of the FMWA;

b. Awarding Plaintiffs overtime compensation in the amount due for

time worked in excess of forty (40) hours per work week;

c. Awarding Plaintiffs liquidated damages, or treble damages in an

amount three times the amount of overtime due;

d. Awarding Plaintiffs reasonable attorney's fee and costs.
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e. Awarding Plaintiffs pre-judgment interest and post-judgment

interest.

COUNT VII CIVIL DAMAGES FOR FRAUDULENT FILING OF
INFORMATION RETURNS UNDER 26 U.S.C. Section 7434 (a)

47) Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations contained in

paragraphs 1 through 20.

48) By failing to properly record all wage payments made to Plaintiffs and similarly

situated employees, account for these payments, and pay FICA and other

applicable employment taxes on their behalf during the relevant time period,

Defendants filed fraudulent information returns for Plaintiffs and similarly

situated employees with the IRS, in violation of26 U.S.C. 7434 (a).

49) Defendants' failure to properly record all wage payments made to Plaintiff

account for these payments to the IRS, and pay FICA and other applicable

employment taxes on their behalf were willful and have caused harm to Plaintiffs

50) Under the Internal Revenue Code, "WI any person willfully files a fraudulent

information return with respect to payments purported to be made to any other

person, such other person may bring a civil action for damages against the person

so filling such return." 26 U.S.C. 7434 (a).

WHEREFORE Plaintiffs pray that the Court enter Judgment against Defendants

and in favor ofPlaintiffs:

a) Costs attributable to resolving deficiencies, civil damages for each Plaintiff,

and damages resulting from Plaintiffs' additional tax debt, and Plaintiffs' time

and expenses associated with any necessary corrections;
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b) That Defendants be ordered to take all necessary measures to correct the

information returns at issue;

c) Costs and attorney's fees and any other relief deemed appropriate by the

Court.

NOTICE OF INTENT TO PURSUE PUNATIVE DAMAGES

Pursuant to section 768.28, Plaintiffs provide notice of their intent to amend the

complaint to include a claim for punitive damages, under the supplemental claims herein,

once record evidence of such is established.

JURY DEMAND

51) Plaintiffs hereby request a jury on all issues so triable.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Earl M. Johnson. Jr.
Earl M. Johnson, Jr., Esq.
Florida Bar No. 006040
Post Office Box 40091
Jacksonville, Florida 32203
(904) 356-5252 Telephone
(904) 394-3288 Facsimile
iaxlcnill@aol.com

/s AlexKing
Alex King, Esq.
Florida Bar No.: 0086034
200 E. Forsyth Street
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
Tel: (904) 355-7777

Alex@HodgesKing.com
Pleadings@HodgesKing.com

Trial Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Dated: December 8, 2016
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